ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 25, 2010
3:08 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Bob Herron, Co-Chair
Representative Wes Kel |l er, Co-Chair
Representative Tamm e W/ son, Vice Chair
Representative Bob Lynn

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representati ve Sharon Ci ssha
Representati ve Li ndsey Hol nes

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 89

"An Act repealing the governor's conmittee on enploynent of
people wth disabilities; creating the state vocational
rehabilitation conmittee and relating to the comittee; and
providing for an effective date."

- MOVED CSHB 89(L&C) QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 259

"An Act relating to citizenship requirenments and an al cohol
inmpairment and drug testing program for applicants for and
reci pients of adult public assistance.”

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 89

SHORT TI TLE: VOCATI ONAL REHABI LI TATI ON COW TTEE
SPONSOR(s) : RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

01/ 28/ 09 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 28/ 09 (H) L&C, HSS, FIN

04/ 08/ 09 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

04/ 08/ 09 (H) Moved CSHB 89(L&C) Qut of Committee

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -1- February 25, 2010



04/ 08/ 09 (H) M NUTE( L&C)

04/ 10/ 09 (H) L&C RPT CS(L&C) 3DP 1AM
04/ 10/ 09 (H DP: BUCH, CHENAULT, OLSON
04/ 10/ 09 (H) AM  COGHI LL

02/ 02/ 10 (H) HSS AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106
02/ 02/ 10 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 02/ 10 (H) M NUTE( HSS)

02/ 25/ 10 (H) HSS AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 259
SHORT TI TLE: ADULT PUBLI C ASSI STANCE ELI G BI LI TY
SPONSCR(s): KELLER, GATTO

01/ 08/ 10 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 8/ 10

01/ 19/ 10 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 19/ 10 (H HSS, JUD, FIN

02/ 25/ 10 (H HSS AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

PAULA SCAVERA, Speci al Assi stant

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Depart ment of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent (DLVD)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion of HB 89.

JI M POUND, Staff

to Representative Wes Keller

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion of HB 259
behal f of the prime sponsor, Representative Keller.

ELLI E FI TZJARRALD, Director

Di vision of Public Assistance

Department of Health and Social Services

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion of HB 259.

M KE HOFFMAN, Executive Vice President

Associ ation of Village Council Presidents (AVCP)

Bet hel , Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 259.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

on

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 2- February 25, 2010



3:08: 23 PM

CO- CHAIR BOB HERRON cal |l ed the House Health and Social Services
St andi ng Committee neet i ng to or der at 3:08 p. m
Representatives T. WIson, Ci ssna, Keller, and Herron were
present at the call to order. Representatives Lynn, Seaton, and
Hol mes arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HB 89- VOCATI ONAL REHABI LI TATI ON COW TTEE

3:08:32 PM

CO CHAI R HERRON announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 89, "An Act repealing the governor's conmttee
on enploynment of people with disabilities; creating the state
vocat i onal rehabilitation commttee and relating to the
commttee; and providing for an effective date.” [In front of
the commttee was CSHB 89(L&C), which had been adopted as the
wor ki ng draft on February 2, 2010.]

3:10: 36 PM

PAULA SCAVERA, Special Assistant, Ofice of the Comm ssioner,
Department of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent (DLWD), offered to
answer any questions. In response to Chair Herron, she stated
that she had not received any questions fromthe commttee.

3:11: 20 PM

CO- CHAI R HERRON cl osed public testinony.

3:11: 33 PM

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON noved to report CSHB 89 (L&C) out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying

fiscal notes. There being no objection, it was so ordered.

HB 259- ADULT PUBLI C ASSI STANCE ELIG BILITY

3:12: 06 PM

CO CHAI R HERRON announced that the final order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 259, "An Act relating to citizenship
requi rements and an al cohol inpairnment and drug testing program
for applicants for and recipients of adult public assistance."

3:13: 01 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 3- February 25, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt Version 26-LS1126\P as the
wor ki ng docunent .

CO- CHAI R HERRON obj ected for di scussi on purposes.
3:13: 20 PM

CO CHAI R KELLER, speaking as the sponsor of HB 259, explained
that HB 259 was a new tool for protecting famlies and children.
He offered his belief that substance abuse was often at the core
of many probl ens. He proposed for HB 259 to allow the
Departnment of Health and Social Services (DHSS) ability to
perform "random and suspicion based drug testing of applicants

for state assistance.” He opined a need for the state to
identify the cause if the state was expected to address the
matter. He stated that one in five Alaskans was |ooking to
public assistance for help. He offered an exanple of a person
applying for a bank loan, and that the bank would want to
receive financial background and information. He pointed out

that the drug tests and the findings would be confidential
within DHSS, and the information would be used for therapy and

assistance to those who were asking for help. He stated that
the standards woul d be set by DHSS. He expressed his desire for
solutions once the data was collected on substance abuse. He

conplimented the community level drug data coalitions and
expressed his support for treatnment and prevention for substance
abuse.

3:21: 38 PM

JIM POUND, Staff to Representative Ws Keller, Al aska State
Legi slature, pointed to a 2001 press release detailing a
McDowel | Group survey which stated that substance abuse in
Al aska cost $614 mllion each year. [Included in the commttee
packets. ] He noted that the fiscal note for HB 259 was still
bei ng prepared. He directed attention to other problens rel ated
to substance abuse which included an increase in child and
famly abuse. He stated that these problens were "very common

in lower income parts of conmunities and nost of those
i ndividuals are on public assistance." He offered his belief
that this was a radical way to address a major problem in
Al aska. He stated that noney received from public assistance
shoul dn't be spent on drugs. He noted that other states were
offering simlar |egislation. He said that HB 259 allowed an

individual to request an additional test should they test
positive. He stated that HB 259 would allow DHSS to continue to

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -4- February 25, 2010



provi de assistance to another individual for support to the
famly, as public assistance benefits would be denied to a
person who tested positive.

3:24:13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON directed attention to Version P, page 3,
and reported that he could not find any |anguage that designated
an al cohol inpairnent test or standard.

MR. POUND replied that the sponsor left latitude to DHSS for the
regul atory process.

3:25: 53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, in response to M. Pound, offered his
belief that the necessary suspicion for admnistering a test for
al cohol would be inpairnent, which was not designated as .08
[ bl ood al cohol content], but rather as a change in one's ability

to operate a notor vehicle. He expressed the need for good
statutory standards, as well as specifications as to how
i mpai rment woul d be checked. He asked to clarify the standard

for suspicion of inpairnent.

MR. POUND said there was no objection to these specifications,
and he offered his belief that the inpairment standard was .04
[ bl ood al cohol content].

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER expressed his definition of inpairnment to
be the ability for taking care of the famly.

3:29: 06 PM

COCHAIR HERRON asked why drugs would not be placed in
regul ation, instead of in statute.

MR. POUND replied that drugs and alcohol were considered at
different |evels. He explained that HB 259 outlined federa
guidelines for drugs, to indicate an intent to neet federal
| aws.

CO CHAIR HERRON asked to clarify that these drug guidelines were
witten into | aw by Congress, and not in regulation.

MR. POUND agr eed.

3:29:58 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 5- February 25, 2010



REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON asked when suspicious behavior would
stinulate a drug test.

MR. POUND, in response to Representative T. WIson, stated that
DHSS coul d randomy request a drug test w thout suspicion.

CO CHAIR KELLER stated that part of the assunption was that the
front line social workers had a |lot of know edge of the public
assistance recipients, and they may be the only one that sees
suspi ci ous activity.

3:31:41 PM

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON asked if illegal inmgrants would be
random y tested.

MR POUND replied that it was not the sponsor's intent for
illegal immgrants to be deleted fromthe |egislation

3:32:24 PM

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON asked if anyone on public assistance
could be randonmy tested.

MR. POUND said that the intent of HB 259 was focused prinarily
on welfare recipients. In response to Representative WIson, he
stated that illegal aliens would not be eligible for public
assi st ance.

3:33:43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON opined that an aid worker was already
statutorily required to report any abuse or neglect, and he
asked if this proposed procedure was to be instead of this
report.

3:34: 29 PM

MR. POUND replied that crimnal abuse would be considered a
different situation, whereas this situation was designed to find
hel p for the individual.

3:34:55 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked when suspicion would begin for other
t han abuse and negl ect.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 6- February 25, 2010



MR. POUND replied that suspicion based was "falling down drunk."
3:35:52 PM
ELLIE FITZJARRALD, Director, Dyvision of Public Assistance,

Departnment of Health and Social Services, stated that two
separate prograns were affected by HB 259. She reported that

Section 1 of the bill dealt wth the General Relief Assistance
program whi ch provided energency assistance, such as housing,
for indigent Al askans. She shared that this program served

about 150 people each nonth, the nmgjority of whom were | egal
citizens or inmgrants. She pointed out that Section 1 brought
it inline with the other public assistance prograns.

3:37: 07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON surnised that those people applying for
public assistance had docunentation that proved U S. citizenship
or legal alien status.

M5. FITZJARRALD, in response, agreed that nost applicants did
have the docunentation, and she nentioned that DHSS could
interface with the Immgration & Naturalization Service (INS) to
verify the authenticity.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if this would cover energency relief
from a disaster, when many people would not have access to any
docunent ati on.

MR. FI TZJARRALD replied that the program dealt mainly with noney
for emergency rent or utility paynments, and that 80 percent of
the funding was for burial assistance. She clarified that this
program was for public assistance to specific energency needs
when someone would not qualify for any other program to basic
needs.

3:39: 21 PM
REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA asked how the program would work, what
famlies were being profiled, and would it include all regions

of Al aska.

3:41:18 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -7- February 25, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE KELLER replied that the bill would apply to
anyone who asked the state for assistance. He stated that
substance abuse was a factor in so many soci al concerns.

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA offered her belief that, in rural Al aska,
the easier tines of access to people for testing were the tines

of |ess drinking. She asked how testing would be acconplished
in a small conmmunity where access was difficult and expensive.
She asked if this had been included in the fiscal note. She

offered her belief that the problem was nost extensive in these
smal | communiti es.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER, in response, said that this was a work in
progress and that the analysis for testing would be included in
a future hearing.

3:43: 47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to page 3, lines 13-16, of
Version P, and read:

In this subsection, a "recipient of cash assistance"
does not include a dependent child, a caretaker of a
dependent child who is not a recipient of public
assi stance based on the caretaker's financial need, or
a protective payee, as defined by the departnment in
regul ati on.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON posed a situation in which a famly
received cash assistance, and asked would the nenbers of the
household, other than the applicant, be subject to random
testing.

M5. FI TZJARRALD expl ai ned that the provision intended to address
situations when a famly nenber, or a relative, was caring for
the children. She stated that 28 percent of the famlies
receiving tenporary assistance were only receiving assistance
for children, often as a neans to avoid foster care placenent.
She detailed that often the relative was not receiving
assistance, but that the tenporary assistance was for the
chi | dren.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the dependent child would be drug
t est ed.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 8- February 25, 2010



M5. FITZJARRALD replied that the intent was to just test adults,
but she added that no one would be tested in the famly
situation which Representative Seaton descri bed.

3:46: 46 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON t hen posed the situation for a famly, and
inquired as to who would be subject to the drug and al cohol
test.

MR. POUND replied that the applicant woul d be tested.
3:47: 32 PM

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON asked if one parent first applied for
tenporary assistance, was it allowable for the other parent to
conme in the next tine.

M5. FITZJARRALD replied that the mjority of famlies on
assi stance were single parent, although there were sone famlies
on tenporary assistance. She offered her belief that the intent
of the bill was for either parent to be subject to testing,
based on random sanpling or suspicion.

3:48: 42 PM

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON asked to clarify if this was just for
t enporary assi st ance.

M5. FITZJARRALD offered her belief that this was for the
Tenporary Assistance for Needy Famlies program (TANF), and
woul d al so apply to tribal TANF prograns.

3:49: 15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE T. W LSON questioned why this only applied to the
t enporary assi stance prograns.

MR. POUND, in response, said that even the tenporary assistance
progranms can have five years of benefits. He opined that the
bill would ensure that "the people on tenporary assistance that
are comng in to the system are not going to ultimately end up
being long term™

3:50: 05 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -9- February 25, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA asked if DHSS had data for the use pattern
of public assistance, specifically for peaks during the tinme of
year .

M5. FITZJARRALD, in response, reported that there were patterns
to assistance due to the seasonality of jobs in Al aska. She
said that assistance requests would increase between Decenber
and February, and would begin to decrease in Muy. She pointed
out that it would correspond to the wunenploynent rate. She
decl ared that she did not know of any data specific to HB 259.

3:51:44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA asked for an explanation of the procedure
for drug testing.

M5. FITZJARRALD replied that DHSS had reviewed what was
avai l abl e, and she expressed the difficulties presented of such
diversity within the state. She offered a prelimnary estinmate
of the cost for a drug testing program

3:53: 03 PM

CO- CHAIR HERRON acknowl edged that this bill was a work in
progr ess. He declared that he did not want "to pile on
additional duties to soneone that is a public assistant.” He

allowed that it was a conplex issue, and that the conmttee
responsibility was to di scuss the policy.

3:53:45 PM

M KE HOFFMAN, Executive Vice President, Association of Village
Council Presidents (AVCP), stated that AVCP opposed HB 259.
He opined that HB 259 was unconstitutional, and an unreasonabl e
infringenment on the privacy rights of welfare recipients. He
stated that there was no crucial and public safety concern to
justify this intrusion. Furt her nore, he decl ared, t he
adm nistration of the alcohol and drug testing would be a
difficult and burdensone process. He pointed out that the
Al aska Suprenme Court had already determined that random drug
testing of Anchorage firefighters violated the privacy clause of
the Constitution of the State of Al aska.

3:56: 36 PM

CO CHAIR KELLER comended DHSS for its caring attitude for
peopl e and situations.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 10- February 25, 2010



3:57:44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON directed attention to page 6, line 10, of
Version P, and inquired if it was the intention to renove public
assi stance for 30 days.

CO- CHAIR KELLER replied that the intent was not to | eave soneone
W t hout assistance for 30 days.

[HB 259 was held over with the objection to Version P left
pendi ng. ]

3:59: 00 PM

ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the conmttee, the House

Health and Social Services Standing Commttee neeting was
adj ourned at 3:59 p.m

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -11- February 25, 2010



